SMC-TR-94-11

AEROSPACE REPORT NO. TR-92(2940)-16

Temperature Dependence of Single-Event Burnout in N-Channel Power MOSFETs

15 March 1994

Prepared by

G. H. JOHNSON, R. D. SCHRIMPF, and K. F. GALLOWAY University of Arizona

and

R. KOGA Space and Environment Technology Center Technology Operations The Aerospace Corporation



039

6

Prepared for

SPACE AND MISSILE SYSTEMS CENTER AIR FORCE MATERIEL COMMAND 2430 E. El Segundo Boulevard Los Angeles Air Force Base, CA 90245

Engineering and Technology Group



APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE; DISTRIBUTION UNLIMITED

DTIC QUALITY INSPECTED 3



AD-A277 921



This report was submitted by The Aerospace Corporation, El Segundo, CA 90245-4691, under Contract No. F04701-88-C-0089 with the Space and Missile Systems Center, 2430 E. El Segundo Blvd., Suite 6037, Los Angeles AFB, CA 90245-4687. It was reviewed and approved for The Aerospace Corporation by A. B. Christensen, Principal Director, Space and Environment Technology Center. Maj. Leslie O. Belsma was the project officer for the Mission-Oriented Investigation and Experimentation (MOIE) program.

This report has been reviewed by the Public Affairs Office (PAS) and is releasable to the National Technical Information Service (NTIS). At NTIS, it will be available to the general public, including foreign nationals.

This technical report has been reviewed and is approved for publication. Publication of this report does not constitute Air Force approval of the report's findings or conclusions. It is published only for the exchange and stimulation of ideas.

'LESLIE O. BELSMA, MAJ, USAF MOIE Program Manager

WILLIAM KYLE SNEDDON, CAPT, USA Deputy Chief Industrial and International Division

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE					Form Approved OMB No. 0704-0188		
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is cellimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, asserbing existing data sources, gethering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to Weshington Headquarters Services, Directorate for information Cperations and Reports, 1215 Jefferson Devis Highway, Suite 1206, Arinston, VA 22202-5322, and to the Offlos of Management and Burdent Papertwork Reduction Provides (MOR-O188). Washington DC 20603.							
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave bl	enk)	2. REPORT DATE 15 March 19	94	3. REPORT	TYPE AND DATES COVERED		
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE	nel	5. FUNDING NUMBERS					
Power MOSFETs							
6. AUTHOR(S) Johnson, G. H., Schrimpf, R	na);	F04701-88-C-0089					
Koga, R. (The Aerospace C	orporation)						
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATIO	N NAME(S) AN	D ADDRESS(ES)			8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER		
Technology Operations	uon				TD 00(0040) 14		
El Segundo, CA 90245		I K-92(2940)-16					
9. SPONSORINGMONITORING Space and Missile Syste		10. SPONSORING MONITORING AGENCY REPORT NUMBER					
Air Force Materiel Com 2430 E. El Segundo Bly		SMC-TR-94-11					
LOS Angeles Air Force 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	Dase. CA S	<u>11245</u>		A			
12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILIT	Y STATEMEN	T			12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE		
Approved for public rele	ease; distrib	oution unlimited	1				
13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 wo	ords)						
The temperature dependence of single-event burnout (SEB) in n-channel power metal-oxide- semiconductor field effect transistors (MOSFETs) is investigated experimentally and analytically. Experimental data are presented which indicate that the SEB susceptibility of the power MOSFET decreases with increasing temperature. A previously reported analytical model that describes the SEB mechanism is updated to include temperature variations. This model is shown to agree with the experimental trends.							
	J						
14. SUBJECT TERMS DMOS	SEU				15. NUMBER OF PAGES 12		
HEXFETSingle-Event-Burnout (SEB)N-Channel MOSFETTemperature Dependence					16. PRICE CODE		
17. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF REPORT	18. SECURITY OF THIS P	CLASSIFICATION	19. SECURITY OF ABSTR	CLASSIFICA	TION 20. LIMITATION OF ABSTRACT		
	Unclass	Inea	Unclassifi		Standard Earn 200 (Day 2 60)		
NSN 7540-01-280-5500			DE	The second second	Contraction Contraction (New, 2-89)		

•

CONTENTS

.

Abstr	ract	2
I.	Introduction	2
II.	Burnout Experiment	3
III.	Experimental Results	3
IV.	Burnout Modeling	4
	IVA. Burnout Mechanism of DMOS Structure	4
	IVB. Temperature Dependence	5
V.	Calculated Temperature Dependence	8
VI.	Summary and Conclusions	8
VII.	Acknowledgements	9
VIII.	References	9

FIGURES

1.	Non-destructive, temperature controlled SEB test set-up	3
2.	SEB cross-section versus V _{DS} and temperature for the IR6766 power MOSFET	3
3.	SEB cross-section versus V _{DS} and temperature for the IRF150 power MOSFET	4
4.	DMOS structure showing parasitic BJT and ion track	4
5.	Components in feedback mechanism	5
б.	 (a) Idealized doping densities in base-collector space charge regions; (b) charge densities for zero and nonzero currents; and (c) electric field and impact ionization rate profiles for zero and nonzero currents 	6
7.	Avalanche curves at 300 K for 100 V, 125 V, 150 V, and 175 V for device with nominal breakdown voltage of 190 V	7
8.	Ratio of avalanche curves at 400 K and 300 K	7
9.	Critical electron current density distribution in the collector at the threshold for burnout with drain-source bias of 150 V at 300 K and 400 K	8
10.	Calculated SEB threshold as a function of temperature and drain-source bias	8

.

	Accesion For						
N	NTIS CRA&I						
	By Distrib	ution /					
	Availability Codes						
	Dist	Avail and / or Special					
	A-1						

TEMPERATURE DEPENDENCE OF SINGLE-EVENT BURNOUT I N-CHANNEL POWER MOSFETs '

Gregory H. Johnson, Ronald D. Schrimpf, and Kenneth F. Galloway Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering University of Arizona Tucson, AZ 85721

> Rocky Koga The Aerospace Corporation Los Angeles, CA 90009

ABSTRACT

The temperature dependence of single-event burn out (SEB) in n-channel power metal-oxidesemiconductor field effect transistors (MOSFETs) is investigated experimentally and analytically. Experimental data are presented which indicate that the SEB susceptibility of the power MOSFET decreases with increasing temperature. A previously reported analytical model that describes the SEB mechanism is updated to include temperature variations. This model is shown to agree with the experimental trends.

I. INTRODUCTION

It has been known for some time that single-event burnout (SEB) of power metal-oxide-semiconductor field effect transistors (MOSFETs) is a catastrophic failure mode that can be triggered by the passage of a single heavy ion through the device [1]. This phenomenon is of concern to space-born system designers since heavy ions are ubiquitous in the space-radiation environment [2]. In addition, the broad range of temperatures that may occur on board a system in flight necessitates an investigation of the temperature dependence of the SEB mechanism.

Power MOSFET burnout has been attributed to the turnon of the parasitic bipolar-junction transistor (BJT), inherent to the double-diffused metal oxide semiconductor (DMOS) structure, when the power MOSFET is turned off (blocking a large drain-source bias) [3]. Previous burnout modeling has been performed for an ambient device temperature of 300 K. This paper reports the temperature dependence of the burnout mechanism in n-channel power DMOS devices.

Observation of SEB in p-channel power MOSFETs has not been reported in the literature. It is believed that the much lower impact-ionization rate for holes than electrons is responsible for the apparent hardness to SEB seen in p-channel power MOSFETs [3]. For this reason, the temperature dependence of SEB in p-channel devices will not be presented in this paper.

The non-destructive burnout experiment method, with a means to control the ambient temperature of the device, was performed on IR6766 and IRF150 power MOSFETs. The SEB cross-section was measured as a function of drain-source voltage and temperature. The temperature was varied from 300 K to 373 K. Due to the difficulty (or impossibility) of cooling devices within the experimental chamber, only temperatures at and above room temperature are investigated herein. The experimental results indicate that the burnout susceptibility of a given device decreases with increasing temperature for a given applied drain-source voltage.

The details of the testing technique are given in Section II. The experimental results are presented in Section III. The burnout mechanism for the power DMOS device structure is reviewed, and the temperature dependence of the model is discussed in Section IV. The temperature dependence of the SEB threshold is then calculated for a typical DMOS device in Section V. Finally, conclusions are given in Section VI.

¹Work at the Unuversity of Arizona supported by the Defense Nuclear Agency under contract numbers DNA001-88-C-0004 and DNA001-92-C-0022.



Figure 1: Non-destructive, temperature controlled SEB test set-up.

IL BURNOUT EXPERIMENT

The IR6766 and IRF150 n-channel power MOSFETs with breakdown voltages, BV_{os} , of 200 V and 150 V, respectively, were subjected to heavy ion bombardment in the 88-inch cyclotron facility at Lawrence Berkeley Laboratories. A monoenergetic beam of 380 MeV Kr ions at a fixed LET of 41 MeV-cm²/mg was used to characterize the devices. The devices were de-lidded prior to heavy ion exposure. Each test was performed until a total fluence of 10^o ions/cm² was obtained, or an error of ~ 100 pulses were counted.

The ambient device temperature was maintained using the Lakshore Thermal Controller DRC-93C. The temperature controller consisted of a resistive heater and thermal sensors connected in a feedback loop. The heater and sensors were attached directly to the TO-240 package of the device under test, (DUT). It was determined that if the temperature was allowed to equilibrate for several minutes, the temperature was very uniform across the surface of the chip. This provided a reliable indication of the device temperature.

The non-destructive burnout test method was used in order to obtain SEB cross-sections for a given device type [4, 5]. The non-destructive test technique employs a current limiting resistor in the drain lead of the DUT so that the drain-source current can not rise sufficiently to induce second breakdown of the parasitic bipolar transistor and consequently burnout. The current-limited pulses were monitored at the drain terminal of the DUT using a Tektronix TEK-CT1 current transformer. SEB cross-section measurements were made by varying the applied drain-source voltage, since the SEB cross-section increases with increasing drain-source voltage. The SEB cross-section was found by the usual method of dividing the total number of nondestructive current pulses per device by the beam fluence to yield units of $cm^2/device$. The experimental test set-up is shown in Figure 1.

III. EXPERIMENTAL RESULTS

SEB cross-section measurements were obtained for the devices at device temperatures of 300 K, 333 K, 353 K, and 373 K. The cross-section versus drain-source voltage for the IR6766 and IRF150 are shown in Figures 2 and 3, respectively. In each case, the V_{ce} threshold for burnout increases with increasing temperature. Also note that in each case, for a given applied drain-source voltage, the SEB cross-section decreases with increasing temperature. Furthermore, as the drain-source bias



Figure 2: SEB Cross-section versus V_{ag} and temperature for the IR6766 power MOSFET (solid lines drawn to guide the eye).



Figure 3: SEB Cross-section versus V_{res} and temperature for the IRF150 power MOSFET (solid lines drawn to guide the eye).

increases, the amount of change in the cross-section decreases. In other words, the burnout susceptibility decreases with increasing temperature, and the change in burnout susceptibility due to temperature decreases with increasing drain-source bias. This can be explained physically through the dependence of the impact ionization rate for electrons on temperature and electric field. The impact ionization rate for electrons decreases with increasing temperature and decreasing electric field. The data presented in Figures 2-3 are consistent with previously reported data [6]. These points and their relevance to the SEB mechanism will be explained in more detail in the next section.

IV. BURNOUT MODELING

This section will focus on the physical model of the burnout mechanism. First, the mechanism leading to burnout via the turn on of the parasitic bipolar transistor will be reviewed. Next, the manner in which temperature dependence is incorporated into the model will be discussed.

IVA. Burnout Mechanism of DMOS Structure

The cross-section of one cell in an n-channel DMOS power transistor is shown in Figure 4. A positive bias applied to the gate forms an inversion layer in the p-body region below the gate oxide, allowing electrons to flow from the source to the drain. Inherent to the DMOS structure is a parasitic npn bipolar Figure 4: DMOS structure showing parasitic BJT and ion track.

transistor, as shown in Figure 4. The source, body, and drain regions of the MOSFET comprise the emitter, base, and collector regions of the parasitic BJT, respectively. In normal operation of the power MOSFET, this parasitic BJT is always turned off. This is accomplished by the common source-body metallization. which shorts out the base-emitter junction of the parasitic BJT.

If lateral current flows in the body (base) below the source (emitter) region, the base-emitter junction becomes forward biased and the parasitic BJT turns on. Single-event burnout of the DMOS structure has been attributed to the turn on of this parasitic BJT (3). If the parasitic BJT is turned ON when the MOSFET is turned OFF, second breakdown of the BJT and hence thermal meltdown (burnout), may occur. The mechanism leading to SEB will now be discussed.

Figure 4 shows the DMOS structure with a heavy ion passing through the parasitic BJT. As the heavy ion traverses the device, electron-hole pairs are generated along its track length, creating an ionized plasma filament. This plasma filament supports a short-lived current source in which holes flow up towards ground via the lateral base region, and electrons flow down towards the positively biased collector. The short-lived current source initially drives the parasitic BJT, locally turning on one cell of the DMOS structure [7].

Depending on how 'hard' the BJT is initially turned ON. the currents within the device will either regeneratively increase until burnout occurs, or the currents will die out leaving the





Figure 5: Components in feedback mechanism: (a) electron injection; (b) avalanche generated holes; (c) base current; (d) base-emitter voltage.

device unharmed. A feedback mechanism inherent to the vertical structure of the parasitic BJT will determine whether the currents will regeneratively increase or die out. The feedback mechanism consists of four basic components. These components in terms of the parasitic BJT are: (1) electron injection from the emitter across the active base into the collector; (2) avalanche-generated hole current returning from the collector into the base; (3) subsequent lateral hole current through the base to its contacts; and (4) the induced base-emitter voltage resulting from the lateral base current. The four components of the feedback mechanism are illustrated in Figure 5.

When the equations governing the feedback mechanism are solved, electron and hole current density distributions within the parasitic BJT are obtained which define the threshold for burnout [8]. The current density distributions at the threshold for burnout are called the critical condition. If the parasitic BJT is initially driven by the heavy-ion-generated current source such that currents are larger than the critical condition, then burnout occurs. If not, then the currents within the parasitic BJT die out and burnout does not occur [8].

It should be noted that in this model it seems that the position of the incident ion strike may influence how hard the parasitic BJT is driven. Incidence at the outer edge of the source region is worst case in the sense that an incident ion with the lowest LET capable of initiating burnout must strike there. At the source edge, an incident ion with a relatively low LET may induce burnout, but the same ion could not induce burnout if it were incident closer to the ground edge of the source. As one moves to positions more interior in the source region, incident ions must have higher and higher values of LET to initiate burnout. Positions more interior in the source region correspond to larger effective sensitive regions. Experimental cross-section versus LET curves show a similar trend. As the LET of the incident ion is increased, the measured cross-section increases. This same argument can be made with the cross-section versus drain-source bias curves for a constant LET that are given in this paper. As the drain-source bias is increased, an ion with the same LET can strike futher into the source region and still initiate burnout. Thus, as the drain-source bias increases, so does the sensitive region.

The temperature dependence of the burnout mechanism can be readily introduced into this feedback mechanism and will now be outlined.

IVB. Temperature Dependence

In the foregoing discussion, it should be emphasized that the primary component of the burnout mechanism is the base current density flowing in the parasitic BJT. In order for the parasitic BJT to turn on and remain turned on, it must have a source of base current. Unlike 'normal' BJT operation, the base current is not supplied from a device terminal; rather, the base current is supplied through avalanche multiplication in the basecollector space charge region (SCR). It will later be shown that the hole current generated in the base-collector SCR is a function of the doping density and thickness of the collector region, the applied drain-source bias, and the local injected electron density [8]. In the following discussion on the temperature dependence of the burnout mechanism, the focus will be on the base current generated through avalanche multiplication. In other words, the injected electron density will be held 'constant' as a function of temperature, and the change of avalanche generated holes will be



Figure 6: (a) idealized doping densities in base-collector space charge regions; (b) charge densities for zero and nonzero currents; and (c) electric field and impact ionization rate profiles for zero and nonzero currents.

monitored as a function of temperature. This is equivalent to accounting for the 2-3mV/°C decrease of base-emitter voltage in the parasitic BJT.

As mentioned previously, the avalanche generated hole current is a function of the doping density and thickness of the collector region, applied drain-source voltage, and the local injected electron density within the base-collector space charge region. The complete details for calculating the avalanche generated hole current appear in [8]. Only the major points will be described here.

The one dimensional Poisson equation is solved across the base collector depletion region taking into account the space charge associated with the mobile carriers. When the space charge of the mobile carriers is considered, the electric field across the base collector space charge region will be somewhat altered, depending on the density of mobile charge compared to the density of background impurity charge. A qualitative illustration of how the electric field is changed is shown in Figure 6 [8]. An idealized impurity profile through the base, collector, and substrate of the parasitic BJT in a typical power MOSFET is shown in Figure 6a. The two cases of zero and non-zero current are depicted in Figures 6b and 6c. The light lines correspond to the zero current case, and the heavy lines correspond to the non zero current case. The electric field and ionization rate plots are further labelled with the subscripts 0 and 1 to distinguish between zero and non-zero currents respectively. The total charge density for the non-zero current case, shown in Figure 6b, has changed to reflect the electrons in transit across the junction. The total charge density to the left of the metallurgical junction, x_a , is more negative (the electrons add to the total charge), and the total charge density to the right of the metallurgical junction is less positive than for the zero current case (the electrons subtract from the total charge).

The change in the total charge density is also reflected in the electric field distribution, shown in Figure 6c. Since the total charge density is more negative to the left of x_{-} for non-zero current, the electric field in this region will have a steeper slope than for the zero current case. This effectively lowers the peak electric field at x and moves x to the right. Similarly, since the total charge density is less positive to the right of x for non-zero current, the electric field in this region will have a lower gradient than for the zero current case. Since the reverse bigs for each case is the same, the area under each electric field plot must be equal. This equal area constraint and the lower slope to the right of x_{1} , push the right edge of the electric field, x, deeper into the collector region. In the example shown in Figure 6c, x_{i} , has reached the epi-substrate boundary at which point the electric field can penetrate no further. The electric field will assume a non-zero value at the epi-substrate boundary to satisfy the equal area constraint imposed by the boundary conditions of the Poisson equation. Therefore, two important phenomena occur in the reverse biased base collector junction when non-zero current flows: (1) the peak electric field at the metallurgical junction decreases, and (2) the electric field assumes a non-zero value at the epi-substrate interface. These two consequences significantly affect the avalanche multiplication, as will be shown later.

The impact ionization rate, α , throughout the depletion region for zero and non-zero current is also shown in Figure 6c. The impact ionization rate, α , is exponentially related to the local electric field [8]. This is why the value of α decreases significandy when the peak electric field drops with increasing current. The avalanche multiplication rate, M, significantly decreases with increasing current as well. The functional relationships between carrier densities, electric field, ionization rate, applied



Figure 7: Avalanche curves at 300K for 100 V, 125 V, 150 V, and 175 V for device with nominal breakdown voltage of 190 V.

voltage, and the physical geometry of the parasitic BJT must be simultaneously solved to determine the avalanche multiplication rate, i.e., the density of avalanche generated holes returning to the neutral base for a given injected electron density.

Recall that the desired result is the hole concentration atx_. $p(x_{i})$, as a function of electron concentration at x_{i} , $n(x_{i})$, or:

$$M = \frac{p(x_p)}{n(x_p)},$$
 (1)

There are six arrays of typically 300 points used in the calculation (the depletion region is discretized into 300 points). These arrays are: (1) space charge, $\rho(x)$; (2) electric field, E(x); (3) potential, V(x); (4) ionization rate, o(x); (5) electron concentration, n(x); and (6) hole concentration, p(x). Given the impurity profile, the applied drain to source voltage, V_{ne} , and the electron concentration at x, the profiles of $\rho(x)$, E(x), V(x), n(x), p(x), and $\alpha(x)$ are calculated for self-consistency [8].

The equations, sample calculations of electric field, ionization rate, potential, carrier densities, and other details of this calculation appear in [8]. The end result is plotted in Figure 7. which shows the calculated avalanche curves for a device with a nominal BV_{re} of 190 V. There are three distinct regions present in each avalanche curve shown in Figure 7. The first region is the distinct hump appearing for values of $n(x_{\perp})/N_{p} < 1$. This corresponds to an initial decrease in the avalanching rate with increasing current. The second region is the valley region or local minimum appearing for values of $n(x_{\perp})/N_0 = 1$. This corresponds Figure 8: Ratio of avalanche curves at 400 K and 300 K.

to a near zero avalanching rate at a current level where the injected electron density and collector doping density are comparable. The third region of the avalanche curve appears for values of $n(x_{\perp})/N_{\perp} > 1$, where the hole concentration increases at approximately the same rate as the electron concentration.

In terms of the feedback mechanism for SEB, the appropriate value for M can be obtained from a curve similar to Figure 7. Note that it is necessary to calculate a separate avalanche curve for each device structure and each applied drain-source bias when solving the equations governing the feedback mechanism.

The temperature dependence is included in the aforementioned calculation via the impact ionization rate. The impact ionization rate (number of electron-hole pairs generated per unit path length) decreases with increasing temperature [9]. This is attributed to the shorter mean free path of the carriers. Since the impact ionization rate is used explicitly in the solution to the Poisson equation, the avalanche-generated hole current density decreases with increasing temperature for the same injected electron current density and applied drain-source bias. A measure of the reduction in hole current density is shown in Figure 8. The ratio of the hole density retuning to the base at 400 K, $p_{\rm max}$, and the hole density at 300 K, pm, is ploued as a function of the electron density, n, injected into the base-collector space charge region of the parasitic BJT. The electron density has been normalized to the doping density in the collector, N_{p} . Note that the hole density at 400 K ranges from 30% to 90% of the hole







Figure 9: Critical electron current density distribution in the collector at the threshold for burnout with drain-source bias of 150 V at 300 K and 400 K.

density at 300 K over much of the operating region. This reduction of the source of base current at higher temperatures is equivalent to an increase of the burnout threshold of the device (ie, in order to achieve the same level of base current, the electron current density in the collector must increase). The calculated temperature dependence of the burnout threshold will be presented in the next section.

V. CALCULATED TEMPERATURE DEPENDENCE

The relationships governing the feedback mechanism can be solved to yield a collector current density distribution at the threshold for burnout, j_{ne}, for a given DMOS device structure [8]. Figure 9 shows the threshold $j_{\mu\nu}$ plotted against position in the parasitic BJT for temperatures of 300K and 400K. These calculations indicate that the peak jac increases from 81.5 kA/cm² to 87.5 kA/cm² when the temperature increases from 300K to 400K. When the critical collector current density is integrated around one cell of the DMOS structure, a critical collector current for burnout is obtained. The critical collector current for burnout. calculated as a function of drain-source voltage and for ambient temperatures of 300K and 400K, is plotted in Figure 10. The device structure used in these calculations has a nominal breakdown voltage of 190V. The device structure used in the calculations is similar to the experimental samples only in the sense that they each have similar values of BV_{ne}. No attempt was made to

Figure 10: Calculated SEB threshold as a function of temperature and drain-source bias.

determine actual dimensions and doping distributions of the experimental samples. For the calculations, the average doping densities in the source, p-body, p*-plug, and drain region are 10²¹ cm⁻³, 2x10¹⁷ cm⁻³, 2x10¹⁹ cm⁻³, and 2x10¹⁴ cm⁻³, respectively. The thickness of the drain region is 13 µm. As shown in Figure 10, the SEB threshold increases with increasing temperature and decreasing voltage. Note that an increase of the critical current increases the SEB threshold. Furthermore, the increase of the SEB threshold is more pronounced at the lower drain-source biases. Once again, this is a result of the temperature and electric field dependence of the impact ionization rate for electrons. Therefore, the SEB threshold has increased by approximately 2.9% for a 100 degree temperature increase at the higher drainsource biases, and the SEB threshold has increased by approximately 4.4 % at the lower drain-source biases. These results are consistent with the experimental treads previously discussed.

VI. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

In this paper, the temperature dependence of SEB in power DMOS devices was discussed. Experimental data for the IR6766 and IRF150 power MOSFETs were presented. The data indicate a definite temperature dependence of the burnout crosssection and in the threshold value of drain-source bias required for burnout. Temperature dependence was included in an existing SEB model through the impact ionization rate, and the calculated results agreed with the experimental trends.

From the results presented in this paper, one can conclude that power DMOS devices are more resistant to SEB when operated at an elevated temperature. This is an important issue for systems that may be operated outside of the 300 K regime in the space radiation environment.

VII. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The authors at the University of Arizona would like to thank Dale Platteter and Jeff Titus from the Naval Weapons Support Center and Lew Cohn from the Defense Nuclear Agency for their continued interest and technical comments related to this on going project. The authors would also like to thank Jacob Hohl for his invaluable help in developing the single-event burnout model.

VIII. REFERENCES

 A.E. Washiswicz, J.W. Groninger, V.H. Strahan, and D.M. Long, "Burnout of Power MOS Transistors with Heavy Ions of 252-Cf," *IEEE Trans. Nucl. Sci.*, vol. NS33, pp. 1710-1713, 1986.

- [2] T.P. Ma and P.V. Dressendorfer, Ionizating Radiation Effects in MOS Devices and Circuits. New York: John Wiley & Sons, 1989.
- [3] J.H. Hohl and K.F. Galloway, "Analytical Model for Single Event Burnout of Power MOSFETs," *IEEE Trans. Nucl. Sci.*, vol. NS-34, pp. 1275-1280, 1987.
- [4] D.L. Oberg and J.L. Wert, "First Nondestructive Measurements of Power MOSFET Single Event Burnout Cross Sections," *IEEE Trans. Nucl. Sci.*, vol. NS-34, pp. 1736-1741, 1987.
- [5] J.L. Tinss, L.S. Jamiolkowski, and C.F. Wheatley, "Development of Cosmic Ray Hardened Power MOSFETs," *IEEE Trans. Nucl.* Sci., vol. NS-36, pp. 2375-2382, 1989.
- [6] A.E. Waskiewicz, J.W. Groninger, "Burnout Thresholds and Cross Section of Power MOS Transistors with Heavy Ions," Defense Nuclear Agency Technical Report, Contract No. DNA-MIPR-88-507, pp. 67-70, Feb 1990.
- [7] G.H. Johnson, "Features of a Heavy-Ion-Generated-Current Filament Used in Modeling Single-Event Burnout of Power MOSFETs," M. S. Thesis, University of Arizona, 1990.
- [8] J.H. Hohl and G.H. Johnson, "Features of the Triggering Mechanism for Single Event Burnout of Power MOSFETs," *IEEE Trans.* Nucl. Sci., vol. NS-36, pp. 2260-2266, 1989.
- [9] C.R. Crowell and S.M. Sza, "Temparature Dependence of Avalanche Multiplication in Semiconductors," Appl. Phys. Let., vol. 9, pp. 242-244, 1966.

TECHNOLOGY OPERATIONS

The Aerospace Corporation functions as an "architect-engineer" for national security programs, specializing in advanced military space systems. The Corporation's Technology Operations supports the effective and timely development and operation of national security systems through scientific research and the application of advanced technology. Vital to the success of the Corporation is the technical staff's wide-ranging expertise and its ability to stay abreast of new technological developments and program support issues associated with rapidly evolving space systems. Contributing capabilities are provided by these individual Technology Centers:

Electronics Technology Center: Microelectronics, solid-state device physics, VLSI reliability, compound semiconductors, radiation hardening, data storage technologies, infrared detector devices and testing; electro-optics, quantum electronics, solid-state lasers, optical propagation and communications; cw and pulsed chemical laser development, optical resonators, beam control, atmospheric propagation, and laser effects and countermeasures; atomic frequency standards, applied laser spectroscopy, laser chemistry, laser optoelectronics, phase conjugation and coherent imaging, solar cell physics, battery electrochemistry, battery testing and evaluation.

Mechanics and Materials Technology Center: Evaluation and characterization of new materials: metals, alloys, ceramics, polymers and their composites, and new forms of carbon; development and analysis of thin films and deposition techniques; nondestructive evaluation, component failure analysis and reliability; fracture mechanics and stress corrosion; development and evaluation of hardened components; analysis and evaluation of materials at cryogenic and elevated temperatures; launch vehicle and reentry fluid mechanics, heat transfer and flight dynamics; chemical and electric propulsion; spacecraft structural mechanics, spacecraft survivability and vulnerability assessment; contamination, thermal and structural control; high temperature thermomechanics, gas kinetics and radiation; lubrication and surface phenomena.

Space and Environment Technology Center: Magnetospheric, auroral and cosmic ray physics, wave-particle interactions, magnetospheric plasma waves; atmospheric and ionospheric physics, density and composition of the upper atmosphere, remote sensing using atmospheric radiation; solar physics, infrared astronomy, infrared signature analysis; effects of solar activity, magnetic storms and nuclear explosions on the earth's atmosphere, ionosphere and magnetosphere; effects of electromagnetic and particulate radiations on space systems; space instrumentation; propellant chemistry, chemical dynamics, environmental chemistry, trace detection; atmospheric chemical reactions, atmospheric optics, light scattering, state-specific chemical reactions and radiative signatures of missile plumes, and sensor out-offield-of-view rejection.